
This site is barrier free.  People needing special assistance or accommodations should contact the 
Community Development Department 72 hours in advance of the meeting at (360) 886-5700 

 
 
 

 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL  
 

2) APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  October 6, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

3) INTRODUCTION OF NEW COMMISSIONERS 
 

4) APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS 
 

5) WORK SESSION TO BEGIN REVIEW OF THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE: 
 

a. GMA overview 
b. Changes and formatting 
c. Introduction: vision statement and general goals 
d. Demographics 

 
6) PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
7) ADJOURN  

 

  

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

AGENDA*REVISED* 
January 12, 2016 7:00 PM 

25510 Lawson Street, Black Diamond, Washington  
 



 

 
Planning Commission Minutes of October 6, 2015   Page 1 of 8  

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Pam McCain called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
Present:   Commissioners Roth, McCain (Chair), Pepper, Senecal, Kuzaro, Davis and 

Weber (Co-Chair)  
Absent: N/A 
Staff: Barbara Kincaid, Community Development Director, Seth Boettcher, Public 

Works Director, and Meri Jane Bohn, Deputy City Clerk 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER SENECAL AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
WEBER TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 8TH SPECIAL MEETING WITH 
AMENDMENT CHANGES. MOTION PASSED 7-0. 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER DAVIS AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER ROTH 
TO ACCEPT THE SEPTEMBER 8TH, 2015 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES WITH 
AMENDMENT CHANGES.  MOTION PASSED 7-0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Concurrency Ordinance Presentation (Power-point)  
 
Mr. Boettcher, Public Works Director presented information on the City’s pending concurrency 
ordinance with a power point presentation.  
  
In response to slide one:  Transportation Concurrency; Understanding the basics 
 
He reminded the Planning Commission that Aaron Nix had distributed a preliminary concurrency 
ordinance for their review.  The Council is not asking for a formal recommendation from the 
Planning Commission as the concurrency ordinance is not a development regulation and 
therefore is not under the Planning Commissions assigned advisory role.  However the council 

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

October 6, 2015, 7:00 PM 
 



 

 
Planning Commission Minutes of October 6, 2015   Page 2 of 8  

encourages your thoughts on the matter and would welcome your written comments at the 
hearing.   
 
The Council is holding a public hearing on the concurrency ordinance on October 15th for 
possible adoption on November 5th. 
 
In response to slide two:   What is Concurrency? 

 A Growth Management Act concept intended to ensure that the necessary public 
facilities and services are available concurrent with the impacts of development. 

 All cities and counties planning under GMA are required to have a transportation 
concurrency ordinance.  RCW 36.70A.070(6)(b). 

 
Mr. Boettcher stated: Although the City has not had a concurrency ordinance, does not mean 
that the City has not been practicing concurrency.  This ordinance adds an administrative 
tracking and formality to what the City has already been requiring and implementing.   
The City has been making sure that water and sewer facilities are available at the time of 
development or as in the case of transportation within 6 years of the impact of development 
causing the level of service of a particular transportation facility to be exceeded.   
 
Commissioner Senecal asked when it states the city has practiced concurrency and we don’t 
have an Ordinance for it, what level of service standards is used? Are they listed in the 
Comprehensive Plan? Director Boettcher said yes and they are also in the water and sewer 
comp plans as well. 
 
In response to slide three:  Transportation Concurrency 

 “ . . . Local jurisdictions must adopt and enforce ordinances which prohibit development 
approval if the development causes the level of service on a locally owned transportation 
facility to decline below the standards adopted in the transportation element of the 
comprehensive plan, unless transportation improvements or strategies to accommodate 
the impacts of development are made concurrent with the development.  . . .”   RCW 
36.70A.070(6)(b). 

 
Mr. Boettcher stated: This excerpt from the RCW is the basics of concurrency. The concurrency 
ordinance gives the City the right and duty to deny a development if concurrency cannot be 
met.  With small projects unable to afford major intersection improvements they cannot move 
forward unless the City has a “strategy” to accommodate the impact of the small development.  
Typically cities have used traffic impact fees to allow small development (like building a home on 
a vacant lot) to move forward.   
 
In response to slide 4:  What does “concurrent with development” mean? 

 For transportation facilities – strategies or improvements must be in place at the time of 
development, or that a financial commitment is in place to complete the improvements 
or strategies within 6 years.   

 The Washington State Legislature recently amended the law to state that if the City has 
adopted a GMA impact fee program, and the payment of the impact fees is delayed, this 
6 year period must begin after full payment of all impact fees.  

 
Mr. Boettcher stated:  Water and sewer capacity is needed at the time of development impact 
and cannot be deferred. Transportation capacity needs to be in place within 6 years of collecting 
the traffic impact from the impacting development.  This gives the City time to plan, find 



 

 
Planning Commission Minutes of October 6, 2015   Page 3 of 8  

funding, budget, design, permit, and construct the facility.  The Level of Service may degrade a 
bit further until the new project comes on line.   
 
In our City the Master Planned Developer will be the primary agent in charge of implementing 
the capacity adding projects to the City’s transportation facilities with the accepted level of 
service.  The project implementation is outlined in the development agreement and is scheduled 
with individual subdivisions.  
 
Director Kincaid stated this is something we are going to want to remember when going through 
the Comp Plan because we are going to want to look for internal consistency with the land use 
element. 
 
Chair McCain wanted to be clear if the city only has jurisdiction over roads that are not state 
highways. Also if the state has its own level of service that is determined for its highways, does 
the city have any way to impact it or put input into it? Director Boettcher said yes and all 
projects on the state route would have to be approved by WASH DOT.  
 
In response to slide 5:  How is it implemented?  

 The City must define what constitutes an adequate “level of service.”  
 The City must measure whether the service needs of a new development exceed existing 

capacity of certain public facilities.  The City also considers any scheduled improvements 
in the capital facilities plan element of the City’s comprehensive plan for the public 
facilities within a specified time period. 

 
Mr. Boettcher stated: The City has established quite high levels of service within the City at a 
level of service C for city streets and level of service D on the state route.  
 
House Bill 1487 clarified that the concurrency requirement of GMA does not apply to Highways 
of Statewide Significance. 
 
In response to slide 6: What happens if adequate capacity is not available? 

 The developer must provide the necessary “strategies,” public facilities or service 
improvements, or  

 The developer must provide a monetary contribution toward such improvements, or 
 The developer must wait until the City provides the necessary improvements.   

 
Mr. Boettcher stated: The MPD developer is responsible and bound by contract to construct the 
necessary transportation improvements to maintain the City accepted Level of service.  
 
The City will develop other strategies for small developers to address their impacts to the City 
transportation system. 
 
In response to slide 7: Is concurrency required for all public facilities and services?  

 The City is required to adopt a concurrency ordinance for transportation facilities.  RCW 
36.70A.070(6)(b).   

 The City is “encouraged” to include other public facilities in the concurrency ordinance 
(i.e., water, sewer). 

 
Mr. Boettcher stated: In the preliminary draft ordinance that was distributed to you, we were 
considering including water and sewer in the ordinance. 



 

 
Planning Commission Minutes of October 6, 2015   Page 4 of 8  

 
Since that time we have decided to not include water and sewer in the concurrency ordinance 
because of the 1) it is not required 2) there were various logistic issues to work out with Soos 
Creek Water and Sewer District and with Covington Water District 3) The City already has the 
authority to deny a development for lack of concurrency for water and sewer based on public 
health or public safety requirements.   
 
Commissioner Senecal questioned if we will be adding water and sewer to the Concurrency 
Ordinance as they can be expeditiously handled. Director Boettcher stated he did not think the 
city would be adding water and sewer for several reasons. It is not required and adds an extra 
burden onto an already small staff.  
 
Commissioner Weber asked couldn’t water and sewer be added into it? Director Boettcher said 
it could be but sees no additional benefit other than additional burden to staff. 
 
In response to slide 8: How do we measure performance on public facilities to determine LOS? 

 The City may measure performance at different times of day (peak vs. off-peak), 
different times of day (weekday vs. weekend), etc. 

 The City may measure performance at different geographic scales (intersections, road or 
road segments, travel corridors, etc.). 

 The City may focus on the total multi-modal supply of infrastructure available for use 
during a peak or off-peak period. 

 
Mr. Boettcher stated: At signalized and all way stop controlled intersections, the LOS is based on 
the weighted average delay for all movements. The worst condition typically is during the PM 
peak hour  
 
For much larger scales different criteria are used such as, WSDOT uses the 70% of the posted 
speed for a corridor. 
 
For an outlying city like Black Diamond it would not be practical to utilize a multi modal 
infrastructure as a LOS measure because most residents are very dependent on a vehicle for 
transportation.  
 
In response to slide 9: What must be in our concurrency ordinance? 

 The procedures and processes to be used to determine whether relevant public facilities 
have adequate capacity to accommodate a proposed development. 

 Identification of the responses to be taken when it is determined that capacity is not 
adequate to accommodate a proposed development.  
 

Mr. Boettcher stated:  The applicability, the timing, the submittal requirements and the 
methods of evaluation of a capacity reservation certificate application are all laid out in the 
ordinance.  
 
The tracking, accounting, expiration, extensions, monitoring and reporting of reserved 
transportation system capacity is also established by the ordinance.   
 
Section 11.11.19 of the ordinance explains the options available to the applicant if capacity is 
not available and appeal procedures.   
 



 

 
Planning Commission Minutes of October 6, 2015   Page 5 of 8  

In response to slide 10:  What is included or required by our draft ordinance? 
 Capacity monitoring.  A process to collect and maintain data to determine at any 

moment, how much of the capacity of public facilities is being used. 
 Capacity allocation.  A process to determine whether the proposed new development 

can be accommodated within the existing or scheduled capacity of the public facility.   
 Reservation of capacity.  Adopting a first-come, first-served system of allocation of 

capacity, and reserving the capacity for the life of the permit. 
 
In response to slide 11:  Elements of our ordinance, continued.  

 Denial of development approval if the proposed development causes the level of service 
on a locally-owned transportation facility to decline below the level of service standards 
adopted in the transportation element of the comprehensive plan – unless improvements 
or strategies to accommodate the impacts of development are made concurrent with the 
development. 

 
Mr. Boettcher stated:  In Black Diamond, we are primarily dealing with direct transportation 
improvements funded and constructed by the MPD developer or potentially traffic impact fee 
payments or possibly late comer fees for other development in the City.   
 
In response to slide 12:  What “improvements or strategies” could be provided by a developer to 
allow approval?  

 Increased public transportation service; 
 Ride sharing programs; 
 Demand management; 
 Other transportation systems management strategies like Traffic Impact Fees or SEPA 

contributions to programmed projects 
 
Mr. Boettcher stated: The first three bullets are not real viable options until the city grows more.  
 
In response to slide 13:  What “improvements and strategies would allow approval? Continued… 

 Denial of development, subject to resubmission when adequate public facilities are 
available. 

 Redesign of the project to a level that is within the available capacity of the available 
public facilities. 

 Conditional approval through which the developer agrees to mitigate the impacts.  
  

Mr. Boettcher stated: Under the last bullet is the strategy that the City has used to ensure 
concurrency for the MPD’s.  
 
Chair McCain asked whose responsibility is it to work out the coordination of level of service 
between the city surface streets and state highways? Director Boettcher said the city has a level 
service “D” which is the same level as the state. So there should be no issue there. The local 
streets are at a level “C”. They are explained well in our chapter 7 comp plan level of service. 
This was written by traffic engineers who explain it best. 
 
Commissioner Davis stated the public feels the only way anything will be done regarding traffic 
is to get money from somewhere else to deal with it or the new development pays for it. 
Director Boettcher stated the Master Planned Development was evaluated and determined by 
the approval process and has been completed. There are established processes and laws that 



 

 
Planning Commission Minutes of October 6, 2015   Page 6 of 8  

have been regulated by the city and held up in courts. Even though some others would like to do 
things differently, not sure anyone has the power of authority to do that. 
 
Commissioner Senecal asked does the state have to do testing once a year on Hwy 169 to meet 
levels of service for state concurrency. What if the level of concurrency does not meet the level 
of service for the state highway? Director Boettcher stated yes the state does have to do testing 
yearly. Right now they are working on most urgent needs first. The surrounding corridors of Hwy 
167 are still issuing development permits even though the state corridor is not meeting their 
level of service. Commissioner Senecal asked at what point does the state require themselves to 
take care of loss of service? Director Boettcher stated that is a finance question and a question 
that the state deals with every year for their budget. Director Kincaid added this is where you 
see consistency that legislation put in place to try and make the coordination work. They are 
taking all the local and state future developments and figuring whether or not it fits into the 
model they have set up. At some point she would hope since we have such a big sophisticated 
plan that the state would be involved with Hwy 169, this would be where you start to see the 
push on the state to get some things done on the Hwy. Director Boettcher said the state is 
looking for ways to use public transportation or other means. If there is a wide open highway or 
big expensive roads that are wide open, who would want to take public transportation? Are 
there alternatives to get people from here to there and how do we encourage that? 
 
Commissioner Weber said the basic premise of the vision 20/40 is to put more development 
around the transit center areas correct? So when you have smaller cities out of the way like 
Black Diamond that are expanding, how can we expect to get public transportation out here? 
Commissioner Kuzaro said the fees collected from traffic impact fees, like Maple Valley they 
improved the roads but once you get half way towards Renton the roads turn bad again. Is it 
possible for the state to improve the roads where there is no development around us as well?  
Director Boettcher stated this is beyond Black Diamond. Our concurrency here is really focused 
on our local streets so within the city you can move around fairly easy at level “C” which is 
higher than a lot of cities. Now if you want to live way out here and commute to larger cities 
that is going to be more difficult.  
 
Commissioner Senecal said the way Hwy 169 is going to affect the community services going 
across it through town; does that get measured annually as well? Director Boettcher stated 
what happens here locally will hopefully take note to our future. In our current plan we have a 
North/South corridor planned. A recommendation to our consultants will be to disconnect the 
southern corridor as we will never be able to get the permits to get across the Rock creek 
wetlands.  
 
In response to slide 14:  What problems are we likely to see with the concurrency ordinance?  

 A traffic model needs to be developed in order to implement the ordinance – cost. 
 A traffic consultant needs to review complicated traffic analyses for large-scale 

developments – cost.  
 Requests from developers to extend vesting of development applications and 

concurrency certificates, which causes problems in the capacity determinations – creates 
difficulties in determining capacity in the future.   

 There may be appeals of the City’s denials of development – cost. 
 
Mr. Boettcher stated:  Under the first bullet the update of the traffic model is in process with 
the update of the comprehensive plan.  Under the second bullet the proposed ordinance 



 

 
Planning Commission Minutes of October 6, 2015   Page 7 of 8  

requires that the developers hire the City to complete the Traffic Impact Analysis for greater 
efficiency and consistency.  
 
Chair McCain stated the city doesn’t have the budget for said modeling does it? Isn’t that the 
reason the traffic study is paid by the developer because the city doesn’t have the funds to do 
that independently? Director Boettcher stated that is true, however the traffic model is being 
funded through the budget for the comp plan update. There will be requests from developers to 
extend vesting and then we will need to go back and issue a traffic capacity certificate.  Chair 
McCain asked if that is consistent with what the county is requiring with other jurisdictions are 
they allowing extensions based on updated traffic concurrency issues and plat extensions for 
that purpose? Director Boettcher stated the plat extensions would go through the planning 
department. 
 
Slide 15 was a Transportation Concurrency Flow Chart showing application is Step 1 concurrency 
determination Step 2 and City response Step 3.  
 
Commissioner Weber asked if this was the final draft? Director Boettcher stated this maybe the 
final, there could be edits to come. The earliest we would adopt is November 5th, 2015. 
Recommendation will be for council to leave the public hearing open. Commissioner Weber 
asked potentially will there be more than one public hearing on this issue? Director Boettcher 
said perhaps something we would have to review with legal. Commissioner Weber wanted 
clarification if the transportation concurrency plan is or is not in the development agreement. 
Director Boettcher said it definitely is. Director Kincaid added but it is not a development 
regulation. Chair McCain asked is this the first time that anyone has seen this? Director 
Boettcher said this is a first, it has not been seen except what was posted to the public online. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
MPD Rezone Recommendation 
 
Director Kincaid recapped the last meeting on the MPD Rezone. It is a city initiated action that is 
currently under moratorium. We need to get a recommendation to council as soon as possible 
on this. There are eight parcels totaling approximately 160 acres that have no development 
regulations on them. Hoping to rezone 26.26 acres to R4 (4 houses per acre) and 130 acres to R6 
(6 houses per acre). These are expansion parcels.  
 
Chair McCain stated for the record that the property owner has approved this. This action will 
not preclude the property owner from development in the future. Director Kincaid stated that is 
correct. One of the issues right now in terms of the property owner is they are very limited and 
no development activity will occur until this is decided. Director Boettcher has worked with the 
property owner on what the zoning should be, and the property owner is in agreement with 
what the city has proposed. Commissioner Senecal asked if the property owner wanted to do 
something could they get an MPD permit. Director Kincaid said the owner could go through the 
MPD permit process because the comp plan designation remains. The owner could still sell off a 
20 acre parcel if they want to. If the MPD zoning stays on those parcels, we cannot accept a 
permit on them. 
 
Director Kincaid is looking for recommendation on the MPD Rezone. Chair McCain stated she 
does not feel it is healthy for any city to have a moratorium and thinks our city can do better 
than that.  She feels if property owners approve a down zone, then it would be a good 



 

 
Planning Commission Minutes of October 6, 2015   Page 8 of 8  

recommendation to council. Chair McCain asked for a motion to move from moratorium to have 
the proposed rezone be approved.  
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ROTH AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
SENECAL FOR RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL TO APPROVE THE REZONE AND REMOVE THE 
MORATORIUM CURRENTLY IN PLACE. MOTION PASSED 7-0. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
Director Kincaid stated Commissioner Roth’s position expires at the end of the year 2015. The 
vacancy will be posted so interested parties can apply. 
 
Director Kincaid also said they are working steadily on the comp plan and trying to get a 
schedule nailed down. The Planning Commission should be seeing the comp plan next month. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
None 
 
ADJOURN 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER KUZARO AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
ROTH TO ADJOURN.  THIS MOTION WAS VOTED ON BY THE COMMISSION AND PASSED 7-0. 
THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:29 P.M.  
 
Minutes respectively prepared by: Meri Jane Bohn, Deputy City Clerk 
 
        
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________  ______________________________ 
Pam McCain, Chairperson    Planning Commission Secretary 



City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update 
2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshops 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 

I. GMA GOALS OVERVIEW 
 

RCW 36.70A.010: Legislative finding 

The legislature finds that uncoordinated and unplanned growth, together with a lack of 
common goals expressing the public's interest in the conservation and the wise use of our 
lands, pose a threat to the environment, sustainable economic development, and the health, 
safety, and high quality of life enjoyed by residents of this state. It is in the public interest that 
citizens, communities, local governments, and the private sector cooperate and coordinate with 
one another in comprehensive land use planning.  
 
RCW 36.70A.020:  Growth Management Act (GMA) planning goals. 
 
The following goals are adopted to guide the development and adoption of comprehensive 
plans and development regulations of those counties and cities that are required or choose to 
plan under RCW 36.70A.040. The following goals are not listed in order of priority and shall be 
used exclusively for the purpose of guiding the development of comprehensive plans and 
development regulations: 
 

(1) Urban growth. Encourage development in urban areas where adequate public facilities 
and services exist or can be provided in an efficient manner. 
 
(2) Reduce sprawl. Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into 
sprawling, low-density development. 
 
(3) Transportation. Encourage efficient multimodal transportation systems that are based 
on regional priorities and coordinated with county and city comprehensive plans. 
 
(4) Housing. Encourage the availability of affordable housing to all economic segments of 
the population of this state, promote a variety of residential densities and housing types, 
and encourage preservation of existing housing stock. 
 
(5) Economic development. Encourage economic development throughout the state that is 
consistent with adopted comprehensive plans, promote economic opportunity for all 
citizens of this state, especially for unemployed and for disadvantaged persons, promote 
the retention and expansion of existing businesses and recruitment of new businesses, 
recognize regional differences impacting economic development opportunities, and 
encourage growth in areas experiencing insufficient economic growth, all within the 
capacities of the state's natural resources, public services, and public facilities. 
 
 
 



City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update 
2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshops 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
 
(6) Property rights. Private property shall not be taken for public use without just 
compensation having been made. The property rights of landowners shall be protected 
from arbitrary and discriminatory actions. 
 
(7) Permits. Applications for both state and local government permits should be processed 
in a timely and fair manner to ensure predictability. 
 
(8) Natural resource industries. Maintain and enhance natural resource-based industries, 
including productive timber, agricultural, and fisheries industries. Encourage the 
conservation of productive forest lands and productive agricultural lands, and discourage 
incompatible uses. 

 
(9) Open space and recreation. Retain open space, enhance recreational opportunities, 
conserve fish and wildlife habitat, increase access to natural resource lands and water, and 
develop parks and recreation facilities. 
 
(10) Environment. Protect the environment and enhance the state's high quality of life, 
including air and water quality, and the availability of water. 
 
(11) Citizen participation and coordination. Encourage the involvement of citizens in the 
planning process and ensure coordination between communities and jurisdictions to 
reconcile conflicts. 
 
(12) Public facilities and services. Ensure that those public facilities and services necessary 
to support development shall be adequate to serve the development at the time the 
development is available for occupancy and use without decreasing current service levels 
below locally established minimum standards. 
 
(13) Historic preservation. Identify and encourage the preservation of lands, sites, and 
structures that have historical or archaeological significance. 
 
(14) Shorelines of the state. For shorelines of the state, the goals and policies of the 
shoreline management act as set forth in RCW 90.58.020 are added as one of the goals of 
this chapter as set forth in RCW 36.70A.020 without creating an order of priority among the 
fourteen goals. The goals and policies of a shoreline master program for a county or city 
approved under chapter 90.58 RCW shall be considered an element of the county or city's 
comprehensive plan. All other portions of the shoreline master program for a county or city 
adopted under chapter 90.58 RCW, including use regulations, shall be considered a part of 
the county or city's development regulations. 
 
 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=90.58.020
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.020
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=90.58
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=90.58


City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update 
2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshops 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
 

II. MANDATORY ELEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE PLANS 
 
RCW 36.70A.070: Framework for comprehensive plans.  
 

The comprehensive plan of a county or city that is required or chooses to plan under RCW 
36.70A.040 shall consist of a map or maps, and descriptive text covering objectives, 
principles, and standards used to develop the comprehensive plan. The plan shall be an 
internally consistent document and all elements shall be consistent with the future land use 
map.  

 
1. Land Use Element which designates the proposed general distribution, location and 

extent of land uses where “appropriate”, i.e. housing, commerce, industry, recreation, 
open space, public utilities and facilities. The element must: 

 Include population densities, building intensities, estimates for future 
population growth. 

 Ensure protection of the quality and quantity of groundwater used for public 
water supplies. 

  Where applicable review drainage, flooding, and stormwater run-off in the area 
and nearby jurisdictions and provide guidance for corrective actions to mitigate 
or cleanse discharges that pollute waters of the state. 

 Consider using urban planning approaches that promote physical activity.  
 
2. Housing Element that ensures vitality and character of established residential 

neighborhoods. The housing element must include: 

 An inventory and analysis of existing and projected housing needs to 
identify the number of housing units necessary to manage projected 
growth. 

 A statement of goals, policies, and objectives with mandatory provisions for 
preservation, improvement, and development of housing including single 
family residences. 

 Identification of sufficient land for housing which includes government-
assisted housing, housing for low-income families, manufactured housing, 
multifamily housing, group homes, and foster care facilities. 

 Adequate provisions for existing and projected needs of all economic 
segments of the community. 
 

3. Capital facilities Plan Element which includes the following: 

 An inventory of existing capital facilities owned by public entities, locations 
and capacities of capital facilities including park and recreational facilities.  

 A forecast of future needs for such capital facilities. 

 Proposed locations and capacities of expanded or new capital facilities. 

  

  
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A&full=true#36.70A.040


City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update 
2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshops 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 
 

 At least a 6-year plan that will finance such capital facilities within projected 
funding capacities and clearly identified sources of public money for such 
purposes. 

 A requirement to reassess the land use element if probable funding fall 
short of meeting existing needs and to ensure that the land use element, 
capital facilities plan element, and financing within the capital facilities plan 
element are coordinated and consistent. 

 
4. Utilities Element that shows the  general location, proposed location and capacity of all 

existing and proposed utilities including but not limited to electrical lines, 
telecommunication lines, and natural gas lines. 
 

5. Transportation Element which includes the following sub-elements: 

 Land use assumptions used in estimating travel. 

 Estimated traffic impacts to state-owned transportation facilities resulting from 
land use assumptions to assist the department of transportation in monitoring 
the performance of state facilities, to plan improvements for facilities, and to 
assess the impact of land-use decisions on state-owned transportation facilities. 

 Facilities and service needs which discuss:    
o Inventories of air, water, and ground transportation facilities and 

services, including state-owned transportation facilities within the city’s 
jurisdictional boundaries 

o Level of service standards (LOS) for all locally owned arterials to serve as 
a gauge to judge performance of the system. 

o LOS standards for state-owned transportation facilities (as prescribed in 
chapters 47.06 and 47.80 RCW1) for the purpose of monitoring 
performance of the system, evaluating improvement strategies, and 
coordinating facilities between the six-year street program and the 
office of financial management’s (OFM) ten-year investment program. 
Transportation concurrency does not apply to state transportation 
facilities and services.  

o Specific actions and requirements to bring into compliance locally 
owned transportation facilities or services that are below an established 
LOS. 

o Forecasts of traffic for at least ten years based on the adopted land use 
plan to provide information on the location, timing, and capacity needs 
for future growth. 

o Identification of state and local system needs to meet current and 
future demands. Identified needs on state-owned transportation 
facilities must be consistent with statewide multimodal transportation 
plans under chapter 47.06 RCW. 

 
 

                                                      
1
 47.06 RCW Statewide transportation planning 

  47.80 RCW Regional transportation organizations 



City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update 
2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshops 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
 

 Finance strategies which provide: 
o An analysis of funding capability to judge needs against probable 

funding resources 
o A multiyear financing plan based on the needs identified in comp plan 

used for basis of six-year transportation improvement plan (TIP) 
required by RCW 35.77.010.2 

o A discussion how additional funding will be raised or land assumptions 
will be reassessed to ensure level of service standards will be met if 
probable funding falls short of meeting identified needs. 

 Intergovernmental coordination efforts which include assessment of impacts of 
the transportation plan and land use assumptions on the transportation systems 
of adjacent jurisdictions. 

 Demand-management strategies. 

 A Pedestrian and bicycle component which includes collaborative efforts to 
identify and designate planned improvements for pedestrian and bicycle 
facilities and corridors to address and encourage enhanced community access 
and promote healthy lifestyles. 
 

6. Economic Development Element that establishes local goals, policies, objectives, and 
provisions for economic growth and vitality and a high quality of life.  The element shall 
include: 

 A summary of local economy such as population, employment, payroll sectors, 
businesses, and sales.  

 A summary of strengths and weaknesses of the local economy defined as the 
commercial and industrial sectors with supporting factors such as land use, 
transportation, utilities, education, workforce housing, and natural and cultural 
resources. 

 Identification of policies, programs, and projects to foster economic growth and 
development to address future needs. 
 

7. Park and Recreation Element that implements and is consistent with the Capital 
Facilities Plan Element as it relates to park and recreation facilities. The element must 
include:     

 Estimates of park and recreation demand for at least ten-year period. 

 Evaluation of facilities and service needs. 

 Evaluation of intergovernmental coordination opportunities to provide regional 
approaches for meeting park and recreational demand. 

 
 
 
 

                                                      
2
 RCW 35.77.010 Perpetual advanced six-year plans for coordinated transportation program expenditures-    

Nonmotorized transportation-Railroad right-of-way 
 



City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update 
2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshops 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 

III. KEY GMA CONCEPTS 
 

RCW 36.70A.090 Innovative techniques 

A comprehensive plan should provide for innovative land use management techniques, including, but 
not limited to, density bonuses, cluster housing, planned unit developments, and the transfer of 
development rights. 
 

RCW 36.70A.100  Comprehensive plans must be coordinated 

The comprehensive plan of each county or city that is adopted pursuant to RCW 36.70A.040 
shall be coordinated with, and consistent with, the comprehensive plans adopted pursuant to 
RCW 36.70A.040 of other counties or cities with which the county or city has, in part, common 
borders or related regional issues. 
 
RCW 36.70A.115 Comprehensive plans and development regulations must provide sufficient 

land capacity for development 

Counties and cities that are required or choose to plan under RCW 36.70A.040 shall ensure 

that, taken collectively, adoption of and amendments to their comprehensive plans and/or 

development regulations provide sufficient capacity of land suitable for development within 

their jurisdictions to accommodate their allocated housing and employment growth, including 

the accommodation of, as appropriate, the medical, governmental, educational, institutional, 

commercial, and industrial facilities related to such growth, as adopted in the applicable 

countywide planning policies and consistent with the twenty-year population forecast from the 

office of financial management. 

 

RCW 36.70A.120 Planning activities and capital budget decisions - implementation in 

conformity with comprehensive plan  

Each county and city that is required or chooses to plan under RCW 36.70A.040 shall perform 
its activities and make capital budget decisions in conformity with its comprehensive plan. 
 
RCW 36.70A.130 Comprehensive plans—Review procedures and schedules—Amendments. 
Each comprehensive land use plan and development regulations shall be subject to continuing 
review and evaluation by the county or city that adopted them. Except as otherwise provided, a 
county or city shall take legislative action to review and, if needed, revise its comprehensive 
land use plan and development regulations to ensure the plan and regulations comply with the 
requirements of this chapter according to the deadlines in subsections (4) and (5) of this 
section.   

 
 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A&full=true#36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A&full=true#36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A&full=true#36.70A.040
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A&full=true#36.70A.040


City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update 
2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshops 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 
Following the review of comprehensive plans and development regulations, counties and cities 
shall take action to review and, if needed, revise their comprehensive plans and development 
regulations to ensure the plan and regulations comply with the requirements of this chapter.   
 
The deadline for King, Peirce, Snohomish counties and the cities within those counties is on or 
before June 30, 12015 and every eight years thereafter.  This is found in subsection (5)(a) 
36.70A.130 RCW.  Only cities subject to a deadline established in subsection (5) (b) through (d) 
that meet certain criteria may delay adoption for up to twenty-four months.   

 
Subsection (7) (a) states, “the requirements imposed on counties and cities under this section 
shall be considered requirements of this chapter (RCW 36.70A.130) under the terms of RCW 
36.70A.040 (1)” which lists who must plan under the GMA.  The legislature acknowledges that 
only those jurisdictions in compliance with the review and revision schedules of the growth 
management act are eligible to receive funds from the public works assistance and water 
quality accounts in the state treasury.  

 

RCW 36.70A.210 Countywide planning policies 

(1) The legislature recognizes that counties are regional governments within their boundaries, 

and cities are primary providers of urban governmental services within urban growth areas. For 

the purposes of this section, a "countywide planning policy" is a written policy statement or 

statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county and city 

comprehensive plans are developed and adopted pursuant to this chapter. This framework shall 

ensure that city and county comprehensive plans are consistent as required in RCW 36.70A.100. 

Nothing in this section shall be construed to alter the land-use powers of cities. 

 

36.70A.140 Comprehensive plans—ensure public participation 

Each county and city that is required or chooses to plan under RCW 36.70A.040 shall establish 
and broadly disseminate to the public a public participation program identifying procedures 
providing for early and continuous public participation in the development and amendment of 
comprehensive land use plans and development regulations implementing such plans. The 
procedures shall provide for broad dissemination of proposals and alternatives, opportunity for 
written comments, public meetings after effective notice, provision for open discussion, 
communication programs, information services, and consideration of and response to public 
comments.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A&full=true#36.70A.100
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A&full=true#36.70A.040


 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 1 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

 

 

Structure of the Comprehensive Plan 
The Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan is composed of three basic parts: 

 Introduction 

 Comprehensive Plan Elements 

 Plan Element Appendices 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Introduction 
 

Purpose of the Comprehensive Plan –describes the 

purpose for Comprehensive Planning. 

 

Planning framework – provides state, regional, and county-

level context for the Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan 

as required under the Growth Management Act (GMA). 

 

Implementation and amendments- describes regulatory 

actions, activities, and programs used to implement the 

Comprehensive Plan and the amendment process. 

 

Vision for Black Diamond – states the vision for Black 

Diamond, which forms the foundation of the 

comprehensive plan.  

 

Plan summary – summarizes major findings for which the 

Comprehensive Plan is based.  

 

Comprehensive Plan  

Elements  
 

Includes topical goals, a 

general introduction of the 

issues identified as GMA 

requirements, from 

background information, and 

through public involvement 

followed by policies that 

address the issues 

 
Plan Element 

Appendices  
Includes current and 

forecast data, needs 

assessments or analysis, 

and conclusions and as 

appropriate, references to 

other source materials or 

policy documents.  

 

1 

3 

 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 2 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

Section 1.0 Introduction 
 

Organization of this Element 
1.1 Purpose of Comprehensive Planning 

1.2 Planning Framework 

1.3 Implementation of the Comprehensive Plan 

1.4 Amending the Comprehensive Plan 

1.5 Our Future Vision for Black Diamond for 2035 

1.6 Vision Goals 

1.7 Plan Summary 

1.8 Plan Outline  

 

Introduction 
Black Diamond is a vibrant city in the Puget Sound Region.  The City lies in the heart of the 

Green River Region, in King County Washington, about 30 miles southeast of Seattle in a 

picturesque natural setting surrounded by forested hills, mountain views, and beautiful 

water features.  Black Diamond has evolved from one of the earliest and largest towns and 

employment centers outside of Seattle for resource activities (primarily extraction) to its 

present-day small town with a rich history and strong community identity.  

Founded in the 1880s, Black Diamond was developed and operated as a company coal 

town for almost fifty years.  In the 1930s, its owner, the Pacific Coast Coal Company sold off 

the land and residences and gave the water system and roads to the town residents. By the 

early 1950s, the Pacific Coast Coal Company’s remaining land holdings were acquired by 

the Palmer Coking Coal Company.  Much of this land has since been retained for mining and 

investment purposes.  The City of Black Diamond incorporated on January 20, 1959.  

Over the years, the City has increased its size and population through several annexations 

while simultaneously working to preserve its natural amenities. With the passage of the 

Growth Management Act in Washington in 1990, the Legislature found that uncoordinated 

and unplanned growth posed a threat to the environment, sustainable economic 

development, and quality of life.  This piece of legislation paved the way for the City to begin 

shaping itself.  An important agreement between the City, King County, Palmer Coking Coal, 

and the Plum Creek Timber Company in 1996 established the Black Diamond Urban Growth 

Area (BDUGA) and Potential Annexation Areas (PAAs) which enabled the City to plan for 

environmentally sustainable growth.  This agreement along with the 2005 Black Diamond 

Open Space Protection Agreement between the City, King County, Plum Creek, and the 

Cascade Land Conservancy identified open space around the city for permanent 

preservation and established minimum urban densities within the BDUGA. The most notable 

(largest) annexation was in 1999 when the City annexed the Lake Sawyer community and 

effectively took in approximately 786 acres with a population increase of 1,480.  

Due to its origin as a resource based settlement and with its rolling topography, lakes, 

streams, forested lands, and open meadows, the City has a unique development pattern.  

This pattern consists of pockets of single-family residential areas and small commercial 

uses in three general areas. The overall development pattern is similar to a small European 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 3 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

or rural east-coast village rather than traditional west-coast small towns which are 

developed around a central commercial core with a grid street pattern.   

Regional projections suggest that significant growth will occur over the next twenty years.  

The neighboring cities of Covington and Maple Valley have been steadily adding new 

residents and jobs.  The City’s 2011 approval of two Master Planned Development (MPD) 

permits and implementing Development Agreements is evidence that the City is poised for 

significant growth in the near future. In the face of this anticipated growth, the citizens of 

Black Diamond want to ensure that the quality of life is maintained and enhanced, the 

future Vision and goals are upheld, and City government will continue to be financially 

sound.   

Overall, the Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan is founded on several key planning 

concepts to achieve the City’s Vision.  The Plan embodies a holistic approach to support 

sustainable growth and development by preserving open space, protecting quality habitat 

including riparian corridors and wetlands when determining lands that are appropriate for 

development at different intensities.  

Development within the City is to be compact so as to preserve 35% to 40% of the entire City 

as open space.  Open space will be a connected network of environmentally sensitive areas, 

trails, parks, and treasured places.  This desired development pattern emphasizes the 

communities’ strong commitment to preserve the natural beauty and intricate ecosystems 

through land use planning.   

The Vision for a sustainable and financially sound future also includes a balance between 

housing and employment.  This Plan provides a range of housing choices for all income 

levels with opportunities for people to live in proximity to work.  This is supported by the 

concept of ensuring accessibility to transportation options, expanding employment 

opportunities in the City’s commercial areas.   

Another approach identified by the City leaders to achieve the Vision and goals while 

attaining efficiencies for infrastructure investments, open space preservation, and achieving 

a balance of jobs and housing.  In 2005, the City adopted regulations for Master Planned 

Developments or MPDs (Black Diamond Municipal Code [BDMC] 18.98).  The City Council 

subsequently approved two MPD permits in 2010, the Villages and Lawson Hills.   

The following summarizes the extent of these approvals: 

The Villages MPD (1,196 total acres) – Maximum of 4,800 low, medium and high density 

residential units, with 750,000 square feet of retail, commercial and light industrial 

uses, as well as schools, parks, and open space. Of the total project site, 42 percent 

will be open space. 

Lawson Hills MPD (371 total acres) – Maximum of 1,250 low, medium and high density 

residential units, with 190,000 square feet of destination and neighborhood retail, 

200,000 square feet of office space, as well as schools, parks, and open space. Of 

the total project site, 37 percent will be open space. 

This approval was preceded by appeals of the final environmental impact statements for 

both MPDs that were later affirmed by the City’s Hearing Examiner on April 15, 2010. 

Subsequent development agreements for both MPDs, in accordance with the municipal 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 4 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

code, were approved in December 2011. These projects are vested for 15 years from the 

time of their approval, and, with City Council approval, the vesting can be stretched out for 

an additional 5 years.  

 

1.1 Purpose of the Comprehensive Plan 
Many of the day-to-day decisions made by City officials can have a significant impact on how 

the community develops and functions. A comprehensive plan coordinates and guides 

individual decisions in a manner that moves the community towards its overall goals. 

 

  This comprehensive plan (the plan) describes a vision and establishes goals and policies to 

guide future growth in the topic areas of urban growth, land use, housing, the natural 

environment, transportation, capital facilities, utilities, and the economy. As required by 

GMA, the plan sets priorities for the next 20 years until 2035, a period in which Black 

Diamond is expected to grow rapidly and will need robust guidance to maintain its quality of 

life. The plan applies to the City of Black Diamond proper and its planned annexation areas 

(PAAs) within the urban growth area (UGA) as shown in Figure 1-1. Annexations of 

unincorporated areas within the City’s UGA are subject to the provisions of the Black 

Diamond Urban Growth Area Agreement (BDUGA) between the City and King County. The 

BDUGA is discussed in the Urban Growth Element, Chapter 2.  

 

Comprehensive Plans are meant to be internally consistent, coordinated, and built on public 

input that gives it a solid basis for implementation. No plan element is more important than 

another and each element is meant to complement the others. 

 

 

 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 5 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

 
          



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 6 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

What is a Comprehensive Plan? 
A Comprehensive Plan is a broad statement of the community’s vision for the future.  It 

contains policies primarily to guide the physical development of the city, as well as certain 

aspects of its social and economic character.  Comprehensive Plans not only indicate how 

the community envisions the city’s future, it also sets forth strategies for achieving the 

desired vision.  It does so by directing regulations and implementing actions and services 

that support the vision.  

 

A plan has three characteristics. First, it is comprehensive: the plan encompasses all the 

geographic and functional elements that have a bearing on the community's physical 

development. Second, it is general: The plan summarizes the major policies and proposals 

of the City, but does not usually indicate specific locations or establish detailed regulations. 

Third, it is long range: the plan looks beyond the current pressing issues confronting the 

community, to the community's future. Although the planning horizon for this plan is twenty 

years, many of its policies and actions will affect the City of Black Diamond well beyond that 

horizon. 

While a Comprehensive Plan is meant to provide a strong and constant vision for the future, 

it is also meant to be a living document that must accommodate change.  Therefore, the 

plan is meant to be regularly updated to account for changing issues or opportunities that 

the City faces.  The amendment process is described in the implementation and 

amendment section of this Introduction Chapter.  

 
Functions of a Comprehensive Plan  
A Comprehensive Plan serves many purposes, including policy determination, policy implementation, 

and communication/education.  

 

 Policy Determination - First, it encourages City officials to look at the big picture, to step away 

from current pressing needs to develop overriding policy goals for their community. Second, 

it creates an environment for the City Council to guide its decision-making openly and 

democratically. The plan serves to focus, direct, and coordinate the efforts of the 

departments within City government by providing a general comprehensive statement of the 

City's goals and policies.  

 
 Policy Implementation - A community can move more effectively toward its goals and 

implement its policies after they have been agreed to and formalized through the adoption of 

a Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan is a basic source of reference for officials as 

they consider the enactment of ordinances or regulations affecting the community's physical 

development (such as a zoning ordinance or a particular rezone), and when they make 

decisions pertaining to public facility investments (such as capital improvement 

programming or construction of a specific public facility). This ensures that the community's 

overall goals and policies are accomplished, by those decisions.  

 

 Guidance - The Plan also provides a practical guide to City officials as they administer City 

ordinances and programs. This ensures that the day-to-day decisions of City staff are 

consistent with the overall policy direction established by the Council.  

 

 Communication/Education - The Comprehensive Plan communicates to the public and to 

City staff the policy of the City Council. This allows the staff, the public, private developers, 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 7 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

business people, financial institutions, and other interested parties to anticipate what the 

decisions of the City are likely to be on any particular issue. As such, the plan provides 

predictability. Everyone is better able to plan activities knowing the probable response to 

their proposals and to protect investments made on the basis of policy. In addition, the 

Comprehensive Plan can educate the public, the business community, the staff, and the City 

Council itself on the workings, conditions, and issues within their City. This can stimulate 

interest about the community affairs and increase the citizen participation in government.  

 

 

1.2 Planning Framework 
In 1990, the Washington State Legislature adopted the Growth Management Act (GMA) to provide a 

basis for local, regional and state solutions to growth pressures. Since 1990, the GMA has been 

amended several times, including the 2003 amendment requiring jurisdictions to review and update 

their plans every 7 years. More frequent (annual) reviews are allowed.  

 

In 1990 Washington’s Legislature passed the Growth Management Act (GMA) which established 

planning goals and a system of planning for cities and counties to accommodate growth.  Cities and 

Counties planning under GMA are required to prepare comprehensive plans to guide growth and 

development for a 20-year period.  

 

GMA establishes mandatory elements for local comprehensive plans. Required elements of 

comprehensive plans include land use, housing, capital facilities, utilities and transportation. 

The state legislature added economic development and parks and recreation as additional 

required elements once funding has been put in place for cities to develop these elements. 

Such funding has not been authorized as of this update.  

A key requirement of GMA is that a city demonstrates the capacity to accommodate 20 

years of forecasted growth within its UGA. The City of Black Diamond comprehensive plan 

accommodates 20 years of growth as required by GMA.  Cities and counties are also 

required to periodically update their plans to comply with updates in regional and state 

requirements, as well as changes in local conditions.  

 

Summary of GMA goals 

RCW 36.70A outlines the goals with which this plan must comply.  They are as follows: 
1. Encourage development in urban areas where adequate public facilities and services exist or 

can be provided in an efficient manner.  

 

2. Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into sprawling, low-density 

development.  

 

3. Encourage efficient multi-modal transportation systems that are based on regional priorities 

and coordinated with county and city comprehensive plans 

 

4. Encourage the availability of affordable housing to all economic segments of the population of 

this state, promote a variety of residential densities and housing types, and encourage 

preservation of existing housing stock.  

 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 8 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

5. Encourage economic development throughout the state that is consistent with adopted 

comprehensive plans, promote economic opportunity for all citizens of this state, especially for 

unemployed and for disadvantaged persons, and encourage growth in areas experiencing 

insufficient economic growth, all within the capacities of the state’s natural resources, public 

services, and public facilities.  

 

6. Private property shall not be taken for public use without just compensation having been 

made. The property rights of landowners shall be protected from arbitrary and discriminatory 

actions.  

 

7. Applications for both state and local government permits should be processed in a timely and 

fair manner to ensure predictability.  

 

8. Maintain and enhance natural resource-based industries, including productive timber, 

agricultural, and fisheries industries. Encourage the conservation of productive forest lands and 

productive agricultural lands, and discourage incompatible uses.  

 

9. Retain open space, enhance recreational opportunities, conserve fish and wildlife habitat, 

increase access to natural resource lands and water, and develop parks and recreation 

facilities.  

 

10. Protect the environment and enhance the state's high quality of life, including air and water 

quality, and the availability of water.  

 

11. Encourage the involvement of citizens in the planning process and ensure coordination 

between communities and jurisdictions to reconcile conflicts.  

 

12. Ensure that those public facilities and services necessary to support development shall be 

adequate to serve the development at the time of occupancy and use without decreasing 

current service levels below locally established minimum standards.  

 

13. Identify and encourage the preservation of lands, sites, and structures that have historical or 

archaeological significance.  

 

14. Prevent inherent harm to the state’s shorelines from uncoordinated and piecemeal 

development.   

. 

 As part of the GMA, King County adopted and the cities endorsed Countywide Planning 

Policies (CPPs) which provide a consistent planning framework to guide each city’s plan.  

The CPPs also address the need to plan outside of city boundaries by establishing urban 

growth areas (UGAs) and the City’s case, potential annexation areas (PAAs).  CPPs focus on 

planning issues that are regional in nature such as housing, employment, essential public 

facilities and critical infrastructure demands for issues around things like transportation and 

energy.    

Also part of the GMA is the Puget Sound Regional Council (PSRC) and the adopted 

Multicounty Planning Policies (MPPs) which are part of Vision 2040.  Vision 2040 is an 

integrated long-range vision for maintaining a healthy region.  The MPPs focus on the 

promotion of regional growth strategies to address land use, economic development, 

transportation, public facilities, and environmental issues.  This regional growth strategy 

forecasts the geographic distribution of people, residential units, and jobs resulting from 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 9 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

population growth. The MPPs serve as the regional guidelines and principles used for the 

Regional Council’s certification of policies and plans.  PSRC is the federally designated 

metropolitan planning organization (MPO) for the four-county central Puget Sound Region.  

As such, PSRC controls the distribution of federal transportation funds to the City.  Chapter 2 

includes more information about consistency with the King County CPPs and PSRC MPPs.  

Vision 2040 Regional Planning Statement 

The City’s comprehensive plan sets out a vision and policies for how Black Diamond will 

accommodate growth until 2035 while meeting the regional objectives expressed in Vision 

2040.  

At its core, Vision 2040 embraces sustainability principles.  Sustainability is the balance of 

economic, environmental, and social equity. Simply defined, a sustainability lens is about 

meeting the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to 

meet their own needs. The sustainability lens allows us to preserve and enhance what we 

have in order to plan for and achieve a livable community now and in the future.  

This Comprehensive Plan incorporates a sustainable approach to planning and includes 

policies which preserve wetland, flood, habitat, geologic, shoreline, and aquifer critical areas 

as key features around which the City will develop.  It requires large developments to employ 

master planning principles such as open space preservation, local economic development, 

mixed uses, compact form, and accessible civic spaces.   

Specifically, the Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan addresses each of the major policy 

areas in Vision 2040 summarized as follows: 

 

 Environment 

o Chapter 4 “Natural Environment” contains protects water quality, critical 

areas, and air quality.   

o Chapter 5 “Land Use” promotes compact development and preserves open 

space. 

o Chapter 7 “Transportation” promotes a multi-modal transportation system 

consistent with the compact development pattern promoted in the land use 

chapter. 

 

 Development patterns 

o Chapter 5 “Land Use” encourages infill and orderly annexation of 

unincorporated areas. 

o  Chapter 3 “Population and Employment Character” supports the regional 

growth projections.   

o Chapter 5 “Land Use” promotes compact development, establishes 

community commercial/mixed-use centers and community design concepts 

that promote multi-modal transportation options, and it sets up a transfer of 

development rights (TDR) program. 

 

 Housing 

o Chapter 6 “Housing” promotes housing affordability and diversity. 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 10 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

 

 Transportation 

o Chapter 7 “Transportation” promotes a safe, well-maintained, multimodal, 

and sustainable transportation system. 

 

 Public Services  

o Chapter 8 “Capital Facilities” and Chapter 9 “Utilities” Elements ensure 

that public services, including stormwater, sewer, water, parks, 

administrative, fire and emergency services, and franchise utilities are 

adequate to serve growth and development. 

 

 Economy 

o Chapter 10 “Economic Development” promotes job retention and 

attraction. 

 

 

1.3 Implementation of the Comprehensive Plan 
 Purpose and Relationship to GMA - A comprehensive plan is implemented through 

the goals and policies it identifies to guide and coordinate local decision making. 

The plan's policies shape the course of action taken by the community as it begins 

to implement the plan. The GMA encourages innovative implementation methods 

that are both regulatory and non-regulatory. Regulatory actions may include the 

adoption of a zoning ordinance or other land use regulations, while non-regulatory 

actions include implementation of the capital facilities plan, economic development 

strategies, and promotion of affordable housing development.  
 Regulatory Measures - The GMA requires that local governments enact land development 

regulations that are consistent with, and implement the Comprehensive Plan. In order to 

accomplish this, the development regulations should be regularly reviewed to ensure 

consistency with the Comprehensive Plan in order to identify the need for amendments. In 

particular, the zoning code and zoning map must be consistent with the future land use 

map and policies established in the plan. The future land use map and land use policies in 

the Comprehensive Plan establish the use, density, and intensity of future development 

within the City.  

 

 Concurrency Management - Comprehensive plan policies also meet the GMA requirements 

for concurrency by establishing level of service (LOS) standards for capital facilities. The 

concurrency management system sets forth the procedures to be used to determine 

whether public facilities have adequate capacity to accommodate a proposed 

development. And, the concurrency management system also identifies the responses to 

be made by the City when it is determined that the proposal will exceed the level of service 

established, and therefore exceed the defined capacity, failing to maintain concurrency. 

The includes the criteria the City uses to determine whether development proposals are 

served by adequate public facilities, and establishes monitoring procedures to enable 

periodic updates of public facilities and services capacities.  

 

Under the GMA, concurrency management must be established for transportation; however, 

jurisdictions may establish concurrency for any public services or facilities for which they have 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 11 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

established level of service standards in their comprehensive plan. Level of service standards may 

be established for fire and emergency facilities, police, schools, sewer and water, transportation, and 

parks and recreational facilities and services.  

 

 Six-Year Capital Improvement Plan - Another major implementation tool of the Plan is the 

six-year schedule of capital improvements. The Capital Improvements Plan, or CIP, sets out 

the capital projects that the City must undertake within the next six years in order to 

implement the Plan. The six-year schedule is updated annually, with the first year of the 

schedule acting as the capital budget for the fiscal year. During the annual updating of the 

six-year schedule, the cost estimates and funding sources listed are updated and revised 

to reflect any additional information that the City has received. The CIP schedule is also be 

revised to include any additional capital projects that are needed to maintain the City's 

adopted level of service standards.  

 

 Coordination with King County - Through the CPPs, the City is a partner with King County 

and the other cities in shaping regional policies and actions. This includes updating the 

CPPs and evaluating UGA issues.   

 

 Consistency with PSRC – The City recognizes the need for regional planning and is 

therefore committed to keeping its policies and actions consistent with Vision 2040.  

 

 Administrative Actions - The Plan includes a number of policies that should be carried out 

through administrative actions, such as inter-local agreements, revised development and 

review procedures, and public involvement programs. Development and review procedures 

must be revised to implement concurrency and to ensure that new development complies 

with the performance standards established.  

 

Public Involvement  
In order for the Plan to remain alive, the citizens of the community must remain in touch 

with its implementation. As the plan is tested by development, there will be the need for 

ongoing amendments to respond to changing conditions. As the community matures, the 

vision of the future will change and new needs and priorities will emerge.  

 

Continued public involvement and communication is crucial to keeping the process fresh 

and engaging so that the planning "wheel" does not have to be reinvented every few years.  

The City has adopted a public participation program which is incorporated in to this 

Comprehensive Plan.  

 

1.4 Amending the Comprehensive Plan 
The Comprehensive Plan is intended to reflect the community’s vision and to plan to 

accommodate expected change. Through its Comprehensive Plan, the City intends to 

manage its future effectively. In order to do so, the comprehensive planning process should 

be approached as continuous, with ongoing review and updating as necessary to reflect 

changes that occur over time. This plan should be reviewed annually and amended as 

appropriate. 

For the Plan to function as an effective decision making document, it must be flexible enough to 

accommodate changes in public attitudes, developmental technologies, economic forces and 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 12 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

legislative policy, yet focused enough to insure consistent application of development principles. The 

GMA requires that the City establish a public participation program that identifies the procedures 

and schedules to be used to update or amendment the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

Other than the 7-year review and update process, the GMA limits comprehensive plan amendments 

to occur no more frequently than once per year, with exceptions.  Exceptions to the GMA annual 

amendment cycle include the following: the initial adoption of a subarea plan, the adoption or 

amendment of a shoreline master program, the amendment of the capital facilities element of the 

plan that occurs concurrently with the adoption or amendment of the city budget, and the resolution 

of an appeal of a comprehensive plan filed with a Growth Management Hearings Board or with the 

court.  

 

In addition, proposed amendments must be reviewed relative to the plans of adjacent jurisdictions, 

and all proposed amendments proposed in any one year must be considered concurrently so that 

the cumulative effect of the various proposals can be determined.  

 

Annual Plan Review and Amendment Process 

The annual review and plan amendment process provides an opportunity to refine and update the 

Comprehensive Plan and to monitor and evaluate the progress of the implementation strategies and 

policies incorporated therein. During the review and amendment process, the Planning Commission 

and City Council shall consider current development trends to determine the City’s progress in 

achieving the economic, land use, and housing goals established in the Plan. 

 

This process allows for any individual, organization, corporation or partnership, general or special 

purpose government, or entity of any kind to propose an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan.   

In some cases, amendments to the Plan may be necessitated by amendments to the GMA or 

Countywide Planning Policies or changes in federal or state legislation. These types of plan 

amendments may be recommended by the City Council, Planning Commission, City Staff, or any 

citizen.  

 

A proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan may be site-specific or area-wide in scope.  If the 

proposed amendment involves specific real property, then the property owner must provide written 

consent for the proposal. A proposal that is not initiated by City Council or the Planning Commission 

shall be submitted to the Planning Commission in writing on a form as required by the Community 

Development Department, together with required filing fees.  

 

The City requests that Comprehensive Plan amendment proponents provide the following 

information in their application for amendment: 

 

 An environmental checklist for SEPA determination. 

 

 Name, address, and phone numbers of the applicant and contact person, if any. 

 

 A general and legal description of the property and owners consent if the amendment 

concerns specific real property. 

 

 A description of what is proposed to be changed and statements addressing why the 

amendment is being requested. 

 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 13 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

 A statement of the anticipated impacts of the change, including geographic area affected 

and issues presented. 

 

 A description of any changes to development regulations, modification to capital 

improvement programs, or functional plans required for implementation so that regulations 

will be consistent with the Plan.  

 

Information to be considered for justifying a proposed amendment rests with the applicant who must 

demonstrate that the request fully complies with the following as applicable: 

 

 The proposed change is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the 

Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

 The existing land use designation was made due to an error or oversight; or 

 

 There has been a change in conditions since the plan was last adopted/amended that needs 

to be addressed; or 

 

 There is an inconsistency between the comprehensive plan and the GMA, King County CPPs, 

or Vision 2040.  

 

Information to assess necessary Comprehensive Plan amendments relates to such issues 

as whether: 

 

 Growth and development are occurring at a faster or slower rate than envisioned in 

the Plan; 

 

 Capacity to provide adequate services is diminished or increased; 

 

 Land availability to absorb amounts and types of development envisioned in the Plan 

is not adequate. 

 

 Assumptions on which the Plan is based are found to be invalid; 

 

 The effect of the Plan on land values and housing is contrary to the Plan goals; 

 

 The overall population growth and relative comparison with the forecasted growth 

projections contained in the Plan (and the inclusion of updated projections where 

appropriate). 

 

The annual review and amendment process requires public participation, both through 

community meetings to familiarize the public with the amendment proposals, as well as 

formal public hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council. Proposed plan 

amendments must be submitted to the State Department of Commerce (DOC) for review at 

least 60 days prior to final City Council adoption.  

 

 

 

 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 14 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

The following policies guide the annual plan review and amendment process:  

 

Policy A-1:  Amendment procedures shall be fully outlined in the City’s land development 

regulations. 

 

Policy A-2: The City shall schedule an annual review of the Comprehensive Plan to consider 

the need for amendments.  

 

Policy A-3:  The Director of Community Development shall maintain a list of all amendment   

submittals; this shall be known as the “docket” and shall be the official method of tracking 

all known requested changes or additions to the comprehensive plan.  

 

Policy A-4: The Director of Community Development shall conduct an annual review of the 

docket with the Planning Commission to initiate formal consideration for inclusion as part of 

the amendment process.  

 

Policy A-5:  All Comprehensive Plan amendments, both City-initiated and all others shall be    

processed together with any necessary zoning, subdivision, or other ordinance   

amendment, to ensure consistency.  

 

Policy A-6:  All amendment proposals shall be considered concurrently by the Planning 

Commission and the City Council so that their cumulative impacts can be determined. 

 

Annual Plan Review and Amendment Schedule 

The plan amendment process is designed to be flexible to accommodate unique conditions such as 

the nature, complexity, or amount of plan amendment requests in a single year. The annual 

“window” of plan amendment submittals from the public will be open throughout the year, (that is, 

the public can submit requests for amendments at any time) however, they will only be “processed” 

in accordance with the adopted regulations. The timing of the annual update process is represented 

by the following generalized schedule: 

 

 First Quarter City accepts initial public requests for comprehensive plan amendments 

(docket).  

 

 Second Quarter Planning Commission reviews the docket and forwards its 

recommendations to the City Council for consideration. City Council decides which 

proposed amendments should be considered and establishes a plan amendment 

schedule.  

 

 Third Quarter Planning Commission evaluates the proposed amendments, holds a 

public hearing, and forwards its final recommendation to the City Council. 

Environmental and state agency review is conducted.  
 Fourth Quarter City Council reviews the recommendation, holds a public hearing, and decides 

on adoption of the proposed amendments.  



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 15 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

Emergency Plan Amendment Consideration  

The Comprehensive Plan may be amended outside the normal schedule if findings are 

adopted (by City Council resolution) to show that the amendment was necessary, due to an 

emergency situation in which property or human safety is in jeopardy, or to resolve an 

appeal of the Comprehensive Plan filed with the Central Puget Sound Growth Management 

Hearings Board.  

Public Process and Visioning 

Black Diamond adopted its first Comprehensive Plan in 1980.  With the passage of the GMA 

in 1990, the City was required begin planning under this new legislation.  In 1991, 

statement of the City’s collective vision was prepared through a public process.  An updated 

“GMA” Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 1996, and again in 2009.  Throughout the 

years, the Plan has been annually amended.  However, the City’s Vision has remained 

substantially unchanged.  

1.5 The Black Diamond Vision 
In the year 2035, Black Diamond will be a beautiful, friendly community based on a rich 

historic heritage and exceptional natural setting, with a small-town atmosphere.  Forested 

areas and open space remain, while development maintains a healthy balance of moderate 

growth and economic viability. 

The economic base will be a mix of retail, industrial/Business Park, office, tourist and local 

cottage industries.  Residential development will be a mix of types, sizes, and densities, 

clustered to preserve maximum open space and to access a system of 

trials/bikeways/greenbelts which connect housing, shopping, employment, with nearby 

regional parks and recreational facilities.  

Citizens actively participate in an effective and open government decision making process 

that reflects community values. There will be good cooperation among nearby jurisdictions, 

and adequate public services and environmental protection to provide a safe and healthy 

quality of life for all citizens, from children to seniors. 

 

1.6 Vision Goals  
The vision statement is amplified with the following over-arching goals that direct the more 

specific goals and policies of the plan elements. 

 

Natural Environment Goal 1:  Retain the City’s natural environment and scenic beauty. 

 

Natural Environment Goal 2:  Encourage Development in areas where natural systems 

present the fewest environmental constraints while exercising responsible stewardship over 

natural resources and amenities. 

 

Land Use Goal 1:  Establish a pattern of development that maintains and enhances a safe 

and healthy quality of life within the community, from children to seniors. 

 

Housing Goal 1:  Make housing available to all economic and social segments of the 

community. 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 16 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

Transportation Goal 1:  Establish and maintain a transportation system that provides safe 

and cost efficient movement of people and goods. 

 

Transportation Goal 2:  Minimize the environmental and social impacts of transportation to 

critical areas. 

 

Transportation Goal 3:  Provide a transportation system that has adequate financing for 

necessary transportation improvements.   

 

Transportation Goal 4:  Maintain a transportation system that is consistent with Puget 

Sound Regional Council’s forecasts and vision.  

 

Capital Facilities Goal 1:  Ensure that public services are available to support development 

future development.  

 

Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Goal 1:  Support the stewardship of natural resources 

and amenities throughout the community in the form of parks, trails, open space, and 

recreation. 

 

Utilities Goal 1:  Utility facility planning will be consistent to meet public service obligations 

for future growth. 

 

Economic Development Goal 1:  Encourage job creation by making the community a better 

place to live, work, and do business.  

 

Community Development Goal 1:  Preserve and encourage the “small town” atmosphere.    

 

1.7 Plan Summary 
The Comprehensive Plan is based on these major findings; 

 

 It is important to retain Black Diamond’s small-town, historic character and preserve 

historic treasures as the City grows.  

 

 The City’s sensitive area ordinance and shoreline management plan should be 

consistently applied. If a conflict should arise, the most restrictive provisions shall 

prevail 

 

 Transportation needs are one of the City’s biggest challenges and therefore, the 

transportation element must address transportation issues and link them to 

strategies and options to minimize traffic congestion. 

 

 Recommended level of service standards for parks, transportation, administrative 

services, police and fire protection must be upheld and new development must be 

served by adequate public facilities and cannot cause the level of service to be 

degraded below these adopted standards.  

 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 17 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

 A diversity of housing options within the community must be available to support the 

City’s affordable housing needs.  

 

 A coordinated system of recreational opportunities including local parks and trails 

must be connected to the regional systems and that these recreational areas are 

considered differently than the City’s Open Space areas which are set aside for 

purpose of preservation and conservation.  

 

 A development pattern containing a mix of land uses is necessary to support a 

healthy balance of jobs to housing.  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 18 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

1.8 Plan Outline – At a Glance 

 

Element or Section Policy 

Abbreviation 

Primary Function 

 

Introduction 

 

 

Provides overview of the purpose the document, planning 

context and framework.  

 

Sets the overarching goals for the City of Black Diamond and 

describes the future vision of what the City will look like and 

how it will function. These goals with the Vision guide all 

polices within the Plan.  

 

 

Community Character; 

Population and 

Employment 

 

CC 

 

Defines the demographic profile for the City to better 

understand the people and character of the place for policy 

guidance. 

 

Natural Environment 

 

NE 

 

Addresses stewardship of the natural setting and resources. 

 

Land Use 

 

LU 

 

Guides the physical placement of land uses. 

 

Housing 

 

HO 

 

Addresses needs and strategies for providing a variety of types 

of housing.  

 

Transportation 

 

TR 

 

Addresses the movement of people and goods. 

 

Utilities 

 

UT 

 

Addresses utility infrastructure needs and design. 

 

Capital Facilities 

 

CF 

 

Describes how the City provides, plans for, and finances 

capital infrastructures, public services. 

 

Economic Development 

 

ED 

 

Directs the City’s role and responsibilities in enhancing 

economic vitality. 

 

Shoreline Master Program 

 

SMP 

 

Addresses program affecting certain shorelines designated by 

the State 

 

Public Participation 

 

PP 

 

Informs the public about the public planning process. 



 City of Black Diamond Comprehensive Plan Update – DRAFT 

 

Page 19 of 19 
January 12, 2016 Joint City Council/Planning Commission Workshop 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 






































